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          1  RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Good morning.  My

          3  name is Leroy Comrie, I Chair the Committee on

          4  Rules, Privileges, and Elections.  The Committee's

          5  members that are present are Melinda Katz from

          6  Manhattan, I mean Melinda Katz from Queens, Bill

          7  Perkins from Manhattan, and Lou Fidler from

          8  Brooklyn, who are actually in another committee room

          9  at the moment, but they will be here for the vote.

         10                 I want to apologize because we are

         11  meeting with a 48-hour notice and a lot of members

         12  already made plans.  They are adjusting their

         13  schedules to be here in time for the vote.  We have

         14  with us Council Member Tony Avella from Queens, and

         15  we are here today to review two candidates, they are

         16  Mr. Irwin Cantor, Queens Borough President

         17  reappointing to the City Planning Commission for the

         18  remainder of a five- year term expiring on June

         19  30th, 2008, currently serving as a holdover- good

         20  morning, Mr. Speaker.  We have also been joined by

         21  Speaker Gifford Miller, Council Member Erik Dilan,

         22  currently serving as a holdover since July 1st,

         23  2003, and Mr. Elias Arout, Staten Island resident,

         24  Mayoral appointee as recommended by the Council to

         25  the Taxi and Limousine Commission for the remainder
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          2  of a seven- year term expiring on January 31st, 2008

          3  currently serving as a holdover since February 1st,

          4  1994.

          5                 I believe the Speaker is here to cast

          6  his vote on both members.

          7                 SPEAKER MILLER:  Yes, I am.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  So, I do not see

          9  anybody from Mr. Cherry's office, but I am sure Ed

         10  would.  Ed, can record your vote?

         11                 MR. O'MALLEY: (Not identified for the

         12  record.): Speaker Miller.

         13                 SPEAKER MILLER:  Aye.

         14                 MR. O'MALLEY: Just sign the report.

         15  Thank you, Mr. Speaker.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Mr. Arout is on

         17  the phone, and he can hear the meeting.  Due to his

         18  schedule, he was not able to come in person, and

         19  because he is a Council appointee that is now being

         20  recommended by the Mayor, we are giving him this

         21  opportunity. So let us read about the Taxi and

         22  Limousine Commission quickly, while Mr. Cantor has

         23  been here waiting, we will try to do this quickly.

         24                 With the rescheduling of the Rules

         25  Committee meeting for today Mr. Arout was unable to
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          2  physically attend due to a previously scheduled

          3  appointment, so we have the telephonic hookup to

          4  allow the Committee members to publicly discuss his

          5  reappointment qualifications.  As the Members know,

          6  TLC has been created by Local Law 12 of 1971, which

          7  is required to continue and further the development

          8  and improve taxi and limousine service in the City.

          9  In addition, TLC shall adopt and establish an

         10  overall public transportation policy governing taxi,

         11  coach, limousine, and wheelchair accessible van

         12  services within the City.  TLC is also responsible

         13  for establishing certain rates, standards and

         14  criteria for the licensing of vehicles, drivers, and

         15  chauffeurs, owners and operators engaged in such

         16  services.  I will skip the rest if you do not mind.

         17                 Mr. Arout, good morning.

         18                 MR. AROUT:  Good morning, Sir.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  If you could

         20  just, the Counsel for the Committee will ask you to

         21  affirm that you are telling the truth at this point.

         22                 MR. AROUT:  Yes, I am.

         23                 MR. O'MALLEY:  Do you solemnly swear

         24  and affirm that the testimony that you are about to

         25  give the Committee is the truth and the whole truth?
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          2                 MR. AROUT:  Yes I do.

          3                 MR. O'MALLEY:  Thank you.  Please

          4  state your name for the record.

          5                 MR. AROUT:  My name is Elias Arout, I

          6  reside at 18 Theresa Place on Staten Island, New

          7  York.

          8                 MR. O'MALLEY:  Thank you very much.

          9                 MR. AROUT:  Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Okay, you have

         11  been properly sworn in and recognized.  Can you tell

         12  the Committee why you would like to continue to

         13  serve as a member of the Taxi and Limousine

         14  Commission.

         15                 MR. AROUT:  Well, since I was

         16  reappointed by Mayor Koch I have done a lot of work

         17  in the City Government especially with the Taxi,

         18  Limousine, I have so many issues I would like to

         19  continue, and I am looking forward to being

         20  reappointed if I can.  I have done an awful lot with

         21  TLC and too much talk about it is too numerous at

         22  this time, but I am sure I am very capable of

         23  continuing any jobs that come forth. I am very happy

         24  to do all of my community work for all of the City

         25  of New York, which I have done for many, many years,
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          2  period.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Thank you.  We

          4  have been joined by Council Member Diana Reyna from

          5  the Bronx and now Queens.  Good morning, I mean

          6  Brooklyn and now Queens, sorry. She is the multi-

          7  borough person.  Members, do you have any questions

          8  for Mr. Elias Arout?  Hearing none, then regarding

          9  oh, yes, okay, Council Member Avella.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  Good morning.

         11                 MR. AROUT:  Good morning, Sir.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  I was just

         13  curious, I recently became aware of a situation

         14  where the Taxi and Limousine Commission initiated a

         15  pilot program for video monitors in taxicabs--

         16                 MR. AROUT:  Yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: -- and that

         18  recently the pilot program was canceled abruptly,

         19  and I know there is an issue of that TLC did a

         20  survey, and apparently the survey came back and

         21  indicated that people were against the equipment

         22  that had been installed.  However, there seems to be

         23  an issue about how the survey was conducted, and it

         24  may not have applied to each of the seven companies

         25  that were used in this pilot program because one of
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          2  them I happened to witness, and it was an excellent

          3  video monitor that you could turn on and off and it

          4  presented information about cultural events,

          5  restaurants, et cetera.  I was just curious as to

          6  how you feel about that program and whether it

          7  should be continued?

          8                 MR. AROUT:  Well the only thing that

          9  I can say at this time, Sir, is that the Chairman

         10  has more information on it.  They took surveys to

         11  that extent, and they decided to discontinue because

         12  the passengers, there were a lot of complaints

         13  coming from the passengers that it was a very

         14  annoying thing.  You can get more information from

         15  the Chairman. I am not to familiar as far as what

         16  the total amount of the complaints that went

         17  through, but they did take a survey and decided to

         18  take it away.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  The only

         20  thing I would ask is that if you would take another

         21  look at it yourself as a Member of the Commission--

         22                 MR. AROUT:  Sure.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: -- and again,

         24  I think it was that the major objection from the

         25  ridership was that the systems could not be turned
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          2  off, but at least one of the seven companies that I

          3  saw, you could turn the system off, and it seemed to

          4  be a good system.  So if you could take another look

          5  at it, I think that would be appreciated.

          6                 MR. AROUT:  I certainly will, Sir.  I

          7  will look into it personally and do the best I can

          8  with the Chairman.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Council Member

         11  Reyna.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Good morning,

         13  Mr. Arout.

         14                 MR. AROUT:  Good morning.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  I just wanted

         16  to ask you, your opinion as far as if there is any

         17  on the fare hike that the drivers are out there

         18  fighting for, what your position is on that, whether

         19  or not you have taken a position, has there been any

         20  further discussion amongst your colleagues?

         21                 MR. AROUT:  Well, I am sure there

         22  has.  As far as the Chairman, from what I was told,

         23  he is still waiting for some more information to

         24  come forth through the industry. Some of the forms

         25  are not completed, petitions are not completed and
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          2  really have not put in much of their expenses. But

          3  at this point it is still on hold, and I am sure as

          4  the Chairman gets more information we will get all

          5  the commissioners together and decide what to do

          6  about it.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Have you taken

          8  a personal interest and lead in this attempt?

          9                 MR. AROUT:  Oh, yes.  I am sure they

         10  all need a raise, but how high I really do not know

         11  at this time, and I really could not really discuss

         12  it at this particular time until the Chairman comes

         13  forth will the proper information so we can vote on

         14  it.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Of course, and

         16  I wanted to just make you aware if you had not

         17  known, this Council took a position in passing

         18  legislation for an advisory board, which the Mayor

         19  just signed this past week, and it is going to

         20  consist of different drivers, representatives of a

         21  diversity of independent drivers, fleet drivers, a

         22  real mix, and are you aware, first of all, that even

         23  has passed and has been signed?

         24                 MR. AROUT:  Not really, I do not know

         25  too much of the background as far as the Committee
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          2  itself, but I know that it is being held with the

          3  Mayor and the rest of the members of the Committee.

          4  So I really cannot talk about it at this time, so I

          5  am very sorry I could not give you any information

          6  on that.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  I do not

          8  expect you to have very thorough information upon

          9  this advisory board, but I would like to know that

         10  you will take an interest in working with this

         11  advisory board in taking recommendations or

         12  beginning some dialogue as soon as the advisory

         13  board does take place.

         14                 MR. AROUT:  I would be very happy to,

         15  and very anxious to be part of any group like that,

         16  anything that will enhance the operation of the

         17  Taxi, Limousine, with the medallion drivers, livery

         18  drivers in an organization like this, certainly

         19  will.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Thank you very

         21  much.

         22                 MR. AROUT:  Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Yes, Mr. Arout,

         24  this is Council Member Comrie again.  Can you tell

         25  us what involvement have you had in the TLC
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          2  adjudicatory process?

          3                 MR. AROUT:  Not too much on that, not

          4  really, Sir.  I really could not give any

          5  information too much on that.  No, Sir.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  The

          7  commissioners do not serve on a or any type of

          8  hearing role or review at all?

          9                 MR. AROUT:  The only reviews that we

         10  have as far as for adjudication would be members of

         11  the industry coming for hearings and adjudications

         12  and suspensions.  We do hear them, yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  So you do sit in

         14  the hearings?

         15                 MR. AROUT:  Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  And you rule on

         17  whether or not a driver is suspended or not?

         18                 MR. AROUT:  Yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Okay, and you

         20  also rule on whether or not a licensed livery

         21  operator or a medallion taxi driver is following the

         22  rules and regulations of TLC, correct?

         23                 MR. AROUT:  That is correct.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Okay.  Can you

         25  describe how you feel regarding the commuter van
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          2  industry?

          3                 MR. AROUT:  Yes, as you all know, we

          4  do regulate commuter vans in some places.  I know we

          5  are operating in Queens and Brooklyn.  They have to

          6  come up with a petition in order to go through

          7  certain communities, and we have to approve it.  Our

          8  job, as you know, is under local law is to regulate,

          9  but not to replace mass transportation, and they are

         10  the four highest services as part of the

         11  transportation infrastructure, and I am sure with

         12  some of the areas working to get zones, they would

         13  submit a petition and we look upon and work on.  But

         14  as of now the only two, Queens and Brooklyn, are the

         15  only one's that I know that have commuter vans.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Right, well I

         17  would ask you to, number one, ask the commissioners

         18  and see what we can do about insuring that the

         19  process is kept open to review because there are

         20  some areas that are over saturated with van

         21  services, and TLC seems to be continuing to approve

         22  multiple applications for the same route.

         23                 MR. AROUT:  Yeah.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  So I would ask

         25  that TLC, and if you could take the lead on in
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          2  insuring that before they approve any applications-

          3  did I perk your interest Lou, sorry, that before

          4  they approve any applications that they actually do

          5  some real testing of how many vans are actually on

          6  that route, how many people are already on the same

          7  transportation system because we have some over

          8  saturation especially at Parsons Archer, which is in

          9  my district, Guy R Brewer, Merrick Boulevard, I know

         10  Flatbush Avenue and Fulton Street, I think, in

         11  Brooklyn and Nostrand Avenue are three other areas

         12  that are over saturated with more than one operator

         13  trying to pick up the same amount of, it is not even

         14  the amount of passengers it is the limited vehicular

         15  access due to the physical structure of the street.

         16  They are not highways, and we need to insure that

         17  TLC is doing a little bit more to really actually do

         18  some kind of head counts or vehicle counts before

         19  they approve any additional applications

         20                 Just back to the adjudicatory

         21  process, how many commissioners actually sit at the

         22  hearings on a normal day?

         23                 MR. AROUT:  On a normal day we have

         24  approximately, if they all appear, I would say

         25  between seven to eight people, maybe nine.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  And are you, by

          3  law are you supposed to sit through an entire

          4  hearing on a particular issue or can you vote by

          5  proxy on a issue?

          6                 MR. AROUT:  No, no proxy.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  So, you have to

          8  be there. And what is the minimum amount of

          9  commissioners that can vote to have a quorum on any

         10  particular hearing?

         11                 MR. AROUT:  You need five.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  You need five.

         13                 MR. AROUT:  Five Commissioners.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Okay, thank you.

         15    We have been joined by Minority Leader James Oddo,

         16  and who wants to go first?

         17                 I will let you guys pick, Council

         18  Member Lou Fidler.  And we have been joined by, oh

         19  sorry, by Finance Chair David Weprin from Queens.

         20                 MR. AROUT:  Good morning, Sir.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Mr. Arout, as

         22  long as Council Member Comrie brought up the subject

         23  of dollar vans, I hope that as a member you are well

         24  aware of the fact that there are dollar vans

         25  operating outside of the areas in which you have
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          2  granted licenses and permits for them to operate.  I

          3  have been working closely with Commissioner Daus to

          4  step up enforcement efforts in the areas where they

          5  are operating contrary to the purpose of dollar vans

          6  where we have MTA buses that are going unused

          7  because the dollar vans are competing, clogging the

          8  streets, causing all kinds of problems in my

          9  community, particularly around Kings Plaza at

         10  Flatbush Avenue and Avenue U.

         11                 So I do not need for you to comment

         12  necessarily, I just want you to be mindful of the

         13  fact that TLC also plays a role in enforcing you

         14  know the dollar van industry when the dollar vans

         15  are operating outside of their franchise.  I hope

         16  that you will keep that in mind and be as aggressive

         17  and innovative as you possibly can in making sure

         18  that there is some teeth to that enforcement.

         19                 MR. AROUT:  Yes, Sir, I will.  I

         20  would be very happy to do that.  I am well aware of

         21  that particular situation, and I will be a very

         22  strong advocate on that. Thank you, Sir.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Council Member

         24  Oddo.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Thank you, Mr.
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          2  Chairman. I just would like to say to my colleagues

          3  that I have known this individual for a long time

          4  working with him as a staff person, the former

          5  Council Member Fresca and now in my own right the

          6  livery situation on Staten Island is a little bit

          7  different in that on Staten Island 90% are fleets

          8  and 10% are owner- operated, in the rest of the City

          9  it is completely opposite.  So we have some real

         10  unique problems on Staten Island in terms of TLC.

         11  We have a tough time finding drivers, there is

         12  insurance issues, and I have worked with

         13  Commissioner Arout very closely, and he has been

         14  great.

         15                 I just want to share with my

         16  colleagues one quick example of that.  We instituted

         17  a program on Staten Island through the help of

         18  Commissioner Arout and the TLC, it is called

         19  Operation Arrivalive where we have linked up

         20  delivery cab industry with restaurant and bar

         21  industry in hopes of informing people that there is

         22  a viable, clean, safe transportation alternative to

         23  drinking and driving. Commissioner Arout has been

         24  absolutely wonderful along with Matt Daus from the

         25  TLC in bringing this program to fruition. So I just
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          2  want to thank him, and I ask my colleagues for their

          3  support.

          4                 MR. AROUT:  Thank you, Councilor.

          5  You have been excellent on Staten Island.  It is a

          6  pleasure to serve with you and all the rest of the

          7  Councilors that take care of all of the problems on

          8  Staten Island.  We are very unique out here, and we

          9  try and do the best we can.  Thank you very much.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Thank you,

         11  Commissioner.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Seeing that

         13  there are no other questions from members, I want to

         14  thank you, Mr. Arout, for being able to do the

         15  telephone connection, and I would just, again, ask

         16  you to do what ever you can as a commissioner to try

         17  to help with the van operations and the livery

         18  operations.  While we are in a diversified City

         19  there needs to have transportation alternatives, we

         20  need to make sure that those alternatives are safe,

         21  that they are well run and extremely well regulated.

         22

         23                 I will not go on about it because we

         24  have another person who has been here waiting.  Your

         25  record does speak for itself, and I hope that TLC
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          2  can be more aggressive in trying to make sure that

          3  we do not have a proliferation of alternative

          4  transportation that undercuts our transportation

          5  that we solely need for seeing these handicapped and

          6  students. So that is a discussion that I would like

          7  to have with TLC at another date.

          8                 But I do work well with your

          9  Commissioner, he is a person that does do a lot of

         10  outreach.  In fact, we have been working with him on

         11  some issues with the van industry in Queens.  So I

         12  look forward to meeting you in person and having a

         13  further discussion.

         14                 MR. AROUT:  Thank you, Mr.

         15  Councilman, and I would just like to thank the whole

         16  Council for being patient in hopefully getting this

         17  through.  I am very happy to be part of the City

         18  Government and working closely with the Mayor and

         19  Matthew Daus, who is a great, great, great leader,

         20  and I am sure you will see more of his leadership in

         21  the future.  I do thank all the Council people for

         22  asking these questions, and I will do the best I can

         23  to fulfill them.  Thank you very much.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Thank you for

         25  wanting to serve.  We are going to be voting on this
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          2  in about 20 minutes. I am sure that Mr. Oddo will

          3  insure that you are voted through, so we will not

          4  keep you on the phone.  Have a nice day.

          5                 MR. AROUT:  Thank you.  Thank you

          6  very much and have a nice day, also.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  All right, take

          8  care.

          9                 At this point we will ask Mr. Cantor

         10  to step forward so you can be sworn in.  As I said,

         11  Irwin Cantor is a Queens resident, a reappointed to

         12  the City Planning Commission, and the members here

         13  are well aware of the City Planning Commission,

         14  there is no limit.

         15                 The Commission has 13 members, seven

         16  appointed by the Mayor, one by the Public Advocate,

         17  one by each of the Borough Presidents.  There is no

         18  limit on the number of terms a member may serve, but

         19  they are prohibited from holding any other City

         20  office.  Members receive an annual salary of

         21  $45,131.  The Planning Commission is responsible for

         22  long-range planning to ensure orderly growth in

         23  future development in the City, they assist in

         24  developing a ten-year capital plan, they prepare and

         25  modify zoning resolutions, they also authorize
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          2  acquisition by the City of Office Space, and they

          3  oversee the environmental reviews required under

          4  State law.

          5                 Good morning, Mr. Cantor.  I

          6  appreciate you being here on time and desiring your

          7  to continue to serve on the City Planning

          8  Commission.

          9                 At this point can you raise your

         10  right hand and be sworn in, please?

         11                 MR. O'MALLEY: Do you solemnly swear

         12  and affirm the testimony you are about to give the

         13  Committee is the truth and the whole truth?

         14                 MR. CANTOR:  Yes, Sir.

         15                 MR. O'MALLEY:  Please state your name

         16  for the record.

         17                 MR. CANTOR:  Irwin Cantor.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  You have to turn

         19  off the light on the microphone to be heard.

         20                 MR. CANTOR:  Irwin Cantor, 2 Bayclub

         21  Drive, Bayside, Queens.

         22                 MR. O'MALLEY:  Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Mr. Cantor,

         24  before you make your opening statement Council

         25  Member Avella has desired to make a preliminary
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          2  statement.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  Normally, Mr.

          4  Chairman, as you know, I take great delight in

          5  grilling prospective members of the City Planning

          6  Commission as the Chair of Zoning for the Council.

          7  In this case I certainly do not have to do that.

          8  Commissioner Cantor's reputation is well know.  He

          9  happens to be a constituent of my district, and he

         10  and I served in previous lives on our local

         11  Community Planning Board.  He is very well respected

         12  in the community and in the field.  I am sure he is

         13  knowledgeable about the issues of balancing

         14  development against preservation, and I am here to

         15  support his application and just to urge my

         16  colleagues to approve it as quickly as possible

         17  because he is an excellent servant of the people of

         18  the City of New York, and we look forward to his

         19  continuing to serve on the City Planning Commission.

         20                 MR. CANTOR:  Thank you very much,

         21  Sir.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Do you have an

         23  opening statement?

         24                 MR. CANTOR:  No, Sir.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Oh, okay, I saw
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          2  all of that paper I thought you were going to--

          3                 MR. CANTOR:  Well, Mr. Goldstein had

          4  cautioned me that there were going to be some

          5  questions, and he asked me that I provide written

          6  responses, so I just brought them with me in the

          7  event that I needed my own personal crib sheet.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Thank you for

          9  being prepared.  Any questions from members?

         10  Council Member Oddo.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  I just actually

         12  would like to say thank you to you as you know,

         13  obviously, a couple of days ago we testified before

         14  the Commission on the biggest down zoning

         15  application in the history of the City undertaken by

         16  Borough President Jim Molinaro on Staten Island, and

         17  I want to thank all of the Members of the Commission

         18  for their interests.  I want to thank you guys for

         19  coming out to Staten Island to witness the

         20  disastrous projects that are taking place and thank

         21  you for expediting what really could have been a

         22  two- year process, and we really appreciate each of

         23  the Members of the Commission actually coming to see

         24  the problem to understand it fully.  I just want to

         25  thank you for that, and it has been a pleasure
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          2  working with all of you folks at the Commission on

          3  that.

          4                 MR. CANTOR:  Thank you, Councilman.

          5  I have been to Staten Island a number of times, but

          6  I must confess this last round consisted with these

          7  new applications, I have referred to this as a

          8  amendatory visit because I think every single member

          9  of the Commission was assured that they had to show

         10  up, and we learned a great deal.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  That is a great

         12  way of putting it, an amendatory.  That is cute, I

         13  like that, and I thank the Chair for doing that.

         14                 MR. CANTOR:  She has done a great

         15  job.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Council Member

         17  Reyna.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  I would be

         19  remissed, Chair, if I did not say a couple of words.

         20    The Commissioner also had the great joy of

         21  following Council Member Oddo to encounter Council

         22  Member Rena, and I was thrilled after my testimony

         23  to have to listen to the Commission take part in

         24  questioning the entity that was proposing a City

         25  planning rezoning of an area where jobs were going
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          2  to be pushed out. You could see that there was not

          3  fluff, there was concrete questions.  There was a

          4  true interest in finding out what the bottom line of

          5  the application was going to mean as far as our

          6  neighborhood was concerned, and I appreciated that.

          7                 MR. CANTOR:  Thank you very much.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  I wanted to

          9  say thank you.  I hope that this Committee will

         10  favor as Jimmy Oddo had mentioned and Tony Avella, I

         11  too recommend in the affirmative his appointment.

         12  Thank you.

         13                 MR. CANTOR:  Thank you very much,

         14  Councilor.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Council Member

         16  Fidler are you joining this love fest here?

         17                 MR. CANTOR:  I was going to ask, can

         18  I please get out of here before I get in trouble.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Of course, my

         20  colleagues to my left and right have a great deal of

         21  influence on me, so we do not have a prior history,

         22  so I cannot jump in with both feet.

         23                 On the subject of down zoning I am

         24  sure the City Planning Commission is in short order

         25  going to be hearing from Southern Brooklyn.  We have
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          2  similar issues as we desire to build affordable

          3  housing, we also do not desire a repeat of what we

          4  have been seeing over and over, which is empty lots

          5  and one family homes being torn down and six- story

          6  condominiums going up, totally out of character with

          7  the block and the community.  We started talking

          8  about it in the Plum Beach area, and then I found

          9  out that it was prevalent in Canarsie and I started

         10  talking about it, and the next thing you know we are

         11  talking about it in Bayridge and Bensonhurst, and so

         12  I believe the Borough President will be coming

         13  forward together with the Council, members from

         14  Southern Brooklyn in seeking a down zoning.  So I

         15  hope the Commission is sympathetic to that.

         16                 My specific question, however, deals

         17  with something a little less pleasant, we are in my

         18  council district experiencing now the attempt by

         19  Vornado Realty, which is the owner of Kings Plaza,

         20  to expand into what used to be their parking lot,

         21  which is of course across the street from a

         22  residential community, and frankly, if I had my

         23  druthers the Kings Plaza would not be expanding, it

         24  would be leveled to the ground because it has, in

         25  fact, hindered the quality of life and affected the
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          2  quality of life in the residential communities

          3  around it for miles and probably destroyed a few

          4  local commercial strips as well.  This expansion is

          5  now being done according to Vornado as of right.

          6  There has been an allegation made by someone who

          7  left the staff of the City Planning Commission and

          8  put it in writing, and my State Senator Carl Kruger

          9  has run to the media with it that the City Planning

         10  Commission staff was instructed by someone at City

         11  Planning to assist Vornado in designing this project

         12  to be as of right, so that it would not require a

         13  ULURP procedure, that the community would not have

         14  an opportunity to express what everyone knew would

         15  be absolute indignation at an already monstrous

         16  shopping mall getting bigger.  I want to know if you

         17  as a Commissioner are aware of this issue, if you

         18  heard about the allegation, if you have any

         19  knowledge of what happened, if you know who at City

         20  Planning would have instructed staff in such a way,

         21  and if not why would a staff member make such an

         22  allegation in writing?

         23                 MR. CANTOR:  Sir, I have not got the

         24  vaguest idea of what you are speaking.  This is the

         25  first I have heard about it.  As you know there is

                                                            28

          1  RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2  the Department of City Planning and there is the

          3  City Planning Commission, and we are two very

          4  distinct groups where the Department will, I like to

          5  use the expression, Department proposes and the

          6  Commission disposes, but in this particular instance

          7  I know nothing about it, and I really could not

          8  offer anything.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Well, I

         10  appreciate, you know, I do not know if sometimes the

         11  only answer you can give is better than making one

         12  up, I assure you.  Does the Commission have any

         13  oversight over the employees?  I mean, would this

         14  matter be something that the Commission members

         15  should be aware of if that allegation has been made?

         16                 MR. CANTOR:  The Commission has no

         17  oversight responsibilities for the Department of

         18  Personnel.  Should we have been made aware of it, I

         19  guess so, but I do not really know.  But again--

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  What would

         21  have happened had you been made aware of it?

         22                 MR. CANTOR:  From a practical point

         23  of view?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Well,

         25  practical, I will go for--
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          2                 MR. CANTOR:  I do not believe that we

          3  have any legal opportunity to take a position.  I

          4  might be wrong, but I do not believe we have any

          5  legal opportunity.  In the years I have been under

          6  Commission I have never experienced a situation

          7  where the Commission had a legal right, if you will,

          8  to make demands of the staff other than well, well,

          9  we need more information on this particular

         10  material, we need more information on this

         11  particular application, which actually we make a

         12  request through the Chair that we would like to see

         13  additional information.  But we have never, in my

         14  experience, experienced what you are describing.  I

         15  do not know what our legal opportunities would be,

         16  certainly if we heard about it I would suggest that

         17  we might ask the Chair.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  So, if

         19  effective staff has assisted an applicant in

         20  designing a project so that the matter does not come

         21  before the Commission, the Commission really can do

         22  nothing?

         23                 MR. CANTOR:  It would know nothing.

         24  If nothing comes before the Commission, Councilman,

         25  then the Commission is not going to go out, either
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          2  myself or individual commissioners, are not going to

          3  go and ask staff, which reports to the Chair, we are

          4  not going to go and say what have you done that we

          5  do not know about that is not coming to us.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Well, I

          7  understand that, but let us say as you are now you

          8  know being made informally aware, if I or someone in

          9  my community were to deliver packages to the

         10  Commissioner saying here is a letter from a member

         11  of the Planning staff that says that this has

         12  happened, and now you are aware of it, you know, so

         13  what would happen?

         14                 MR. CANTOR:  On an informal basis it

         15  is possible that one would say to either the Chair

         16  or to one of the staff, because we do speak to staff

         17  obviously, what is this all about?  But I would,

         18  respectfully, say to you it would be on a curiosity

         19  basis rather than on an ability to do something

         20  positive one way or the other.  I do not believe we

         21  have that jurisdiction, that responsibility, that

         22  capability.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  I appreciate

         24  your indulgence, Mr. Chairman.  I realize this is

         25  not directly on the merits of Mr. Cantor.  I could
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          2  not resist the opportunity to pick his brain, and I

          3  certainly do not hold him or any member of the

          4  Commission responsible for what the staff has done

          5  in this particular instance, which if true is just

          6  an absolute outrage to everyone who lives within

          7  five miles of Kings Plaza.  But I appreciate your

          8  candor, and I appreciate the information and perhaps

          9  we will have a conversation about this in the

         10  future.

         11                 MR. CANTOR:  Thank you, Sir.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Okay seeing that

         13  there are no other questions for Mr. Cantor, and his

         14  record has been impeccable I would move that we can

         15  move to a vote.  We are going to call some other

         16  members, we have been joined by, Council Member

         17  Christine Quinn from Manhattan, Chair of the Health

         18  Committee.

         19                 Mr. Cantor, I want to thank you for

         20  your desire to continue service as Tony, and James,

         21  and Lou, and Diana Reyna have said, you have had an

         22  extensive and impeccable record of service, and I am

         23  glad to see that you want to continue.  I hope that

         24  we have an opportunity to do some down zoning Queens

         25  as well in my district because the- well we will not
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          2  say, we have been joined by Council Member Melinda

          3  Katz. No, I was trying to listen and talk at the

          4  same time, who is the Chair of our Land use

          5  Committee, so I am sure you might have- and Council

          6  Member Bill Perkins from Manhattan who is in the

          7  middle of a--

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  I vote aye

          9  on all.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  You vote aye on

         11  all, well great.  Well we are ready to take the role

         12  so--

         13                 MR. CANTOR:  Thank you, Sir, and

         14  thank you ladies and gentlemen, have a good weekend.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  You too.  We are

         16  ready to call the roll.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Comrie.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Aye on all.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Quinn.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Aye.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Reyna.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Aye on all.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Fidler.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Aye on all.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Katz.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Aye on all, and

          3  let me give my apologies to the Chair, I am in a

          4  Committee meeting next door, I do apologize, and I

          5  vote aye on all.

          6                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Weprin.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN:  Aye on all.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Oddo.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  I will vote aye

         10  on all, and just say to my colleagues that if anyone

         11  is interested in hiring me as a consultant on how to

         12  get the Mayor to create a task force in your borough

         13  please feel free to do so.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK:  With the Speaker's

         15  previous vote the vote stands at nine in the

         16  affirmative, zero in the negative, no abstentions.

         17  Council members would you please sign the Committee

         18  reports.  Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  All right, the

         20  formal part of the meeting is now closed, we will

         21  hold the vote open for members that are on their way

         22  since we are having a stated meeting today.  One

         23  piece of business, Desiree, sorry -- oh I also want

         24  to note that I thought we were well represented by

         25  the Mayor's Office by  the previous legislative
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          2  liaison, who is now moved on to the Department of

          3  Ed. And I wish her well. Erin and Desiree are here

          4  as a representative, but as Desiree knows I used to

          5  chastise Erin for the Mayor's Office's reluctance to

          6  process our applications that have been generated

          7  from the City Council.  We have a couple of

          8  outstanding issues, as you know, there was some

          9  things that happened, that were supposed to happen

         10  on July 23, but due to the tragic incident that

         11  happened here at the Council it did not.  Some

         12  letters have been sent back and forth about it, we

         13  still have not gotten any final resolution, and we

         14  would appreciate final resolution forth coming

         15  quickly on that item, and also the people who are

         16  still hanging out on the fringes because they have

         17  not been processed by the Mayor's Office, we need to

         18  ensure that they are processed within the next 30

         19  days.  They have been out there for too long, and it

         20  is just not fair, it is not anything that is wrong

         21  with their records, most of them have served before,

         22  or they have other impeccable records.

         23                 So Desiree if you could pass that on

         24  I believe the staff just gave you a copy of the

         25  letter from the Speaker, and we would hope not to
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          2  have to have this discussion again. If you are the

          3  regular liaison for the Committee welcome aboard,

          4  and if not, have a nice day.

          5                 Thank you and we are adjourned.

          6                 (Hearing adjourned at 11:00 a.m.)
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